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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I'm Gale Brewer,

          3  and I'm sorry to be late.  I'm Chair of the

          4  Technology In Government Committee in the City

          5  Council, and we're here today to talk about a couple

          6  of Intros regarding strategic planning on

          7  technology.  So, thanks to Bruce Lai who's here,

          8  Policy Analyst.  We're just going to run through

          9  some of the topics that we're thinking about

         10  discussing today and then we'll hear from the great

         11  Ron Bergman from DoITT.  So why don't we start.

         12                 One of the issues is that this,

         13  although I have tremendous respect for DoITT and for

         14  the staff, I actually think it's one of the more

         15  professional agencies in our whole government.

         16  There is always this need for more public scrutiny

         17  and public involvement.

         18                 We have a couple of intros, Intro No.

         19  17, which you can see would talk about some annual

         20  technology plans.  This is something that is going

         21  to be an ongoing discussion around the United

         22  States.  It's not just, just New York and then Intro

         23  No. 27, which would talk about a five-year plan.

         24  And I think there will be some hope that obviously

         25  agencies would have input into, into that five-year
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          2  plan. Some of this is a result of, during the

          3  Giuliani Administration when there was an Executive

          4  Order No. 43, that was signed in actually, I guess

          5  1998, created a technology steering committee, I'm

          6  sure Ron Bergman will talk, there may already,

          7  certainly, be an internal one.  And it talked about

          8  annual updates, and although I think the Mayor's

          9  Management Report does some of that, I believe there

         10  should be more public discussion.  And again, we'll

         11  hear from Ron Bergman as to exactly the status of

         12  Executive Order No. 43, and whether there is a

         13  committee on some of the planning that goes on.

         14                 I certainly know that because DoITT

         15  is, as professional as it is, that there is a great

         16  deal of internal discussion and planning, but,

         17  again, I would like to see more sun shine on it.  I

         18  do think that tech plans enable oversight.

         19                 We have, in the City Council have, I

         20  don't know how many committees, and I believe that

         21  in some cases, the Finance staff does try to get

         22  information that equates technology efficiencies

         23  with financial savings, and the question is how

         24  DoITT goes about their job, where does this occur

         25  and perhaps where could it occur in even more
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          2  efficient ways?  Because public input is always

          3  helpful that way, so that's where I think the

          4  technology plans are something that could be helpful

          5  for planning.

          6                 Obviously, we can talk about it

          7  improves service and saves dollars. I think that's

          8  what we're all about.  That's why we're all here

          9  today and why we're part of public policy and so

         10  obviously, the 311 is the hallmark.

         11                 All these other plans that I've read

         12  from Virginia, State of New York and California, as

         13  an example, I don't think any of them have the

         14  customer service that the 311 provides and certainly

         15  DoITT and the Mayor have, deserve lots of accolades

         16  for that and the question is, how in addition to

         17  that or as a part of that, what are some of the

         18  planning that goes on?

         19                 So now that, we're up, I think we're

         20  up now to tech plans improve service and save

         21  dollars.  I'm just going to go, we talk a little

         22  about some of these New York State, it's a very big

         23  pleasure when you open up the New York State Plan

         24  that the Co-Chair is none other than Ron Bergman,

         25  our very own DoITT person, and, so, I think he'll
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          2  talk a little bit about the State plan and discuss

          3  whether or not planning for the State helps or

          4  hinders the City and what some of his thoughts are

          5  on that.

          6                 California, under the new Governor,

          7  has a five-year strategic plan.  I read it and it

          8  seems like some of it the City of New York is

          9  already doing, but it's certainly something worth

         10  discussion.

         11                 They have, obviously, a very large

         12  state.  They talk about making plans and services

         13  accessible to government, but I did not hear any

         14  discussion of a 311 or anything equivalent to it.

         15                 They talked about business

         16  applications, some of which we're doing here in the

         17  City.  They talked about security and privacy which

         18  is always a concern, be it Human Services or Public

         19  Safety and of course, lower costs and work force

         20  issues and governance.  All of which I think we'll

         21  talk about as we go through the hearing today.

         22                 Virginia is under Governor Warner.

         23  He appointed a commission under former Governor

         24  Wilder to look at efficiencies and one portion of it

         25  is the technology aspect and I think they actually
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          2  have a five year time frame that they've been

          3  thinking about.  That was actually off on an

          4  extremely good series of technology initiatives so

          5  the Virginia has put a lot of time and energy into

          6  this.

          7                 Again, I don't think there's a 311

          8  but there's certainly a lot of planning and

          9  Virginia, I think does seem to have thought about

         10  some of these initiatives.

         11                 Regarding the review of broadband

         12  accessibility and the question of broadband would be

         13  something that, when we have a hearing in Brooklyn

         14  on January 10th at Polytechnic University, we'll be

         15  talking about issues regarding accessibility in some

         16  of the neighborhoods in Brooklyn but broadband in

         17  general.  And that certainly comes under the

         18  auspices of Economic Development which is an aspect

         19  of where broadband can be helpful.

         20                 There's lots of discussion about

         21  Philadelphia and wireless and what the, Governor

         22  Rendell signed and how that impacts the City of

         23  Philadelphia, some of the outlying other cities and

         24  what kind of implication it has for the rest of the

         25  country and of course, here in New York, I think we
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          2  have made lots of parks accessible and there, of

          3  course, Verizon has made some accessible if you fit

          4  into their criterion but it is a way in which we can

          5  talk about this issue of economic development.

          6                 Some of us heard Michael Copps, FCC

          7  Commissioner, speak at a recent conference of

          8  Hispanics and Technology and he certainly put a lot

          9  of time and does put a lot of time thinking about

         10  rural and inner cities and the issue of digital

         11  divide and how some of these new technologies can

         12  hopefully close that gap. And so those were some of

         13  the ways in which we're thinking about

         14  accessibility.

         15                 The State of Texas has also thought

         16  about some of these strategies and has given us some

         17  testimony just, obviously cannot be here today but

         18  we'll certainly share it with you.  It will be on

         19  the net and part of our record for today and they, I

         20  think, have also been thinking about some of these

         21  issues.  Citizens Budget Commission has provided

         22  some testimony that talks about the fact that as we

         23  are proceeding down the issue of technology

         24  planning, they want to make sure that we also talk

         25  about it as a savings and how it is related to any
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          2  kind of budget discussion and hopefully we'll have

          3  more talk about that today.

          4                 I think you can see that as we are

          5  proceeding with this committee, that there are lots

          6  of aspects of it that have budget implications,

          7  technology planning and I think, as a body that is

          8  the oversight of our City, what we want is to

          9  provide some more sunshine.  So without further ado,

         10  I'd like to ask Ron Bergman to testify as he always

         11  does and we thank him for being here today.

         12  Whenever you're ready sir.

         13                 MR. BERGMAN: Is this better?  Good

         14  afternoon, Chairperson Brewer.  My name is Ron

         15  Bergman, Deputy Commissioner of the Office of the

         16  CIO at the Department of Information Technology and

         17  Telecommunications or DoITT.

         18                 I am pleased to join you today to

         19  provide testimony on Intro 17 and Intro 27 proposed

         20  legislation relating to the production and

         21  distribution of annual and five year Information

         22  Technology strategy documents, respectively.

         23  As the Council is aware, over the course the past

         24  several years, DoITT has assumed a central and

         25  strategic role in guiding the City's information
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          2  technology direction.  DoITT is leveraging it's core

          3  strengths to support the programmatic and business

          4  objectives of City agencies in a more significant

          5  way than ever before.

          6                 I would first like to address Intro

          7  17.  To summarize, Intro 17 would require DoITT to

          8  transmit, on an annual basis, an IT strategy report

          9  to the Council and the Mayor, detailing the agency's

         10  procurement and deployment plans for the following

         11  year.  As an addendum to the report, DoITT would be

         12  required to publish the annual technology plans of

         13  city agencies.

         14                 As I will explain, we believe that

         15  DoITT is already accomplishing the goal of Intro 17

         16  and that further legislation is not necessary.

         17  Specifically, an IT strategy plan has been developed

         18  through a multi- agency collaborative effort under

         19  DoITT's guidance.  This has been accomplished

         20  pursuant to DoITT's existing responsibilities under

         21  Chapter 48 of the City Charter.

         22                 We would be pleased to provide you

         23  with a copy of this plan.

         24                 As you know, Chapter 48 of the

         25  Charter, already contains very extensive and
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          2  rigorous mandates pertaining to DoITT's role in

          3  planning, formulating, coordinating and advancing

          4  information technology and telecommunications

          5  policies and strategies for the City.  These

          6  mandates include and extensive interagency

          7  coordination component.  Consequently, we strongly

          8  believe that both the practical objectives and the

          9  specific legal mandates of Intro 17 are already

         10  being addressed.

         11                 At the beginning of the Bloomberg

         12  Administration, Commissioner Menchini met with

         13  Deputy Mayors, agency heads and Chief Information

         14  Officers among others, to formulate IT strategies

         15  that would meet the City's most pressing technology

         16  needs.  These meetings resulted in strategies that

         17  have been shared with this Committee in previous

         18  testimony and are currently targeting four key

         19  areas.

         20                 They include first, improving public

         21  access to government services.

         22                 Second, leveraging the City's

         23  strategic technology infrastructure and investments.

         24                 Third, responding to critical events.

         25                 And finally, establishing strategic
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          2  partnerships.

          3                 During past hearings, when DoITT has

          4  been asked to testify before the Council, we have

          5  detailed programs and, indeed, the successes that

          6  these strategies have produced.  They include the

          7  introduction, as you know it, of the 311 Citizen

          8  Service Call Center.  The creation of a robust

          9  technical infrastructure.  The delivery of

         10  centralized service offerings among them enterprise

         11  e mail and our enterprise contract initiatives.  In

         12  every case, DoITT has worked closely with City Hall,

         13  the Office of Management and Budget, the Office of

         14  Operations and other City agencies in pursuing these

         15  endeavors.

         16                 In addition, since the start of this

         17  Administration, Commissioner Menchini and DoITT

         18  executive staff have met quarterly with a council of

         19  agency CIOs to formulate, review and disseminate

         20  strategic objectives.

         21                 Moreover, DoITT has expanded IT user

         22  groups and cross- agency meetings to leverage common

         23  approaches to information sharing.  Current user

         24  groups include Geographic Information Systems,

         25  Internet Protocol, Wireless Technology, Network
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          2  Security, Procurement, NYC.gov Content, Digital

          3  Signatures, and Infrastructure, among others.

          4                 Today, the City's IT vision is

          5  reflected in the on the ground activities where

          6  acquisition strategies, contracts and technology

          7  deployments are crafted to reflect the requirements

          8  of our agency customers.

          9                 Finally, it is worth noting that our

         10  strategic message is widely disseminated within the

         11  City and beyond.  Through information sharing and

         12  learning opportunities as well as ongoing

         13  conferences and collaborations with City, regional,

         14  national and international colleagues, our working

         15  assumptions are constantly tested and refined.

         16  Locally every autumn, DoITT co- hosts the Government

         17  Technology Forum, a one and a half day event to

         18  facilitate information sharing among City IT staff,

         19  something that we've spoken at in the past.

         20                 We also host more than 500 City

         21  employees at the annual Excellence in Technology

         22  Awards program to recognize and share City IT best

         23  practices.  Regionally, close relationships are in

         24  place with the New York State Office of the CIO and

         25  we meet regularly with the CIOs of nearby
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          2  jurisdictions.

          3                 In June of 2004, the Sister City

          4  Program of the City of New York, along with DoITT

          5  and CUNY, hosted an international Mayoral Summit

          6  entitled "Transforming Government Through

          7  Technology" which was attended by representatives

          8  from Beijing, Budapest, Cairo, Jerusalem,

          9  Johannesburg, London, Madrid and Tokyo.  The Summit

         10  focused on the many innovative applications of

         11  technology by municipal agencies around the world to

         12  improve the delivery of services in areas such as

         13  transportation and public health and the ways that

         14  technology can make government more accessible and

         15  more effective for it's citizens.

         16                 Allow me to move on to sharing our

         17  view concerning Intro 27. Again, to summarize, Intro

         18  27 would mandate that, every three years, DoITT

         19  produce and transmit to the Mayor and the Council a

         20  five-year information technology and

         21  telecommunications plan. Among other things, this

         22  plan would require to include City franchise related

         23  expense allocations and a review of residential and

         24  business broadband accessibility.

         25                 As an overriding principle, DoITT
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          2  believes that the City's budget process is the most

          3  appropriate place to put forth it's long term,

          4  comprehensive technology plan.  This is because such

          5  planning cannot be conducted in isolation from

          6  consideration of other compelling infrastructure and

          7  capitol needs.  The budget process is the forum

          8  where plans for the City's future are accounted for

          9  reviewed and prioritized.

         10                 DoITT also has some specific concerns

         11  regarding Intro 27.  First, there is a certain

         12  amount of overlap between Intro 27 and Intro 17. In

         13  addition, we are unclear as to the meaning of the

         14  provision that would require the five year plan to

         15  include any projected public educational,

         16  governmental access expense allocations to be made

         17  by the Department as provided by the City's cable

         18  and high capacity franchise agreements.

         19                 Finally, while DoITT may be able to

         20  estimate the percentage of residential and business

         21  customers with broadband cable access, data on high

         22  speed wireline and wireless deployment plans is not

         23  directly available to the agency from our franchise

         24  agreements.

         25                 This information is typically
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          2  considered to be proprietary and is closely held by

          3  the service providers.  DoITT would, therefore, need

          4  to rely on secondary data sources such as private

          5  analyst reports and surveys for this data.

          6  Moreover, it must be kept in mind that predictions

          7  about the broadband landscape five years into the

          8  future can only be described as guess work.

          9                 Nonetheless, DoITT recognizes and

         10  appreciates the Council's concern about the value of

         11  technology planning.  For this reason, DoITT has,

         12  for example, joined with the City's Economic

         13  Development Corporation to form the

         14  Telecommunications Policy Advisory Group or TPAG.

         15  TPAG will help the City develop a series of

         16  recommendations, policy recommendations, that are

         17  intended to stimulate economic development in New

         18  York City.

         19                 The members of TPAG include Telecom,

         20  governmental, not- for- profit, academic and

         21  consumer user representatives and I believe that

         22  Bruce of your staff was interviewed by this group.

         23  This group will ensure that key issues of concern to

         24  the City's Telecom community are examined in order

         25  to support network reliability, improve the
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          2  telecommunications infrastructure within the five

          3  boroughs and enable the City to maintain it's

          4  position as an attractive place to do business.

          5                 I trust that I have demonstrated in

          6  my remarks that DoITT fully recognizes and is

          7  vigilant in identifying current and future

          8  technology needs as well as new opportunities to

          9  execute on our mission and responsibilities.  We

         10  look forward to working with you and I thank you for

         11  this opportunity to present our views.

         12  I would now be pleased to respond to your questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         14  much, Ron Bergman.

         15                 One question I have to start with is

         16  and maybe again this is confusing because some of

         17  it's dated and some of it's redundant but the fact

         18  of the matter is there is an Executive Order No. 43.

         19  There is, of course, what you mentioned as in terms

         20  of planning, structure in the Charter, or

         21  information structure and then, of course, I am very

         22  familiar with the work that EDC is doing and the

         23  staff, I know they're working on broadband as an

         24  example.  So I'm wondering how do you think

         25  Executive Order No. 3 is being met?
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          2                 Is that Technology Steering Committee

          3  still relevant?

          4                 MR. BERGMAN: Sure.  Executive Order

          5  43, the Technology Steering Committee is chaired as

          6  you know by Commissioner Menchini and includes

          7  representatives of Office of Management and Budget

          8  and the Office of Operations.  We actually meet on

          9  the second Wednesday of every month so our last

         10  meeting was yesterday.  There are monthly meetings.

         11                 Many provisions of the Executive

         12  Order are in place such as sponsoring and reviewing

         13  key technology initiatives, the review of newly

         14  appointed CIOs, sponsoring user groups.

         15                 As I mentioned, we have these user

         16  groups that are quite extensive and so on.

         17                 However, we are seeking new ways to,

         18  to review and address, in particular, the issues

         19  around making IT governance more effective and

         20  frankly, less bureaucratic. The, consistent with how

         21  we have developed our strategy document, we are

         22  planning to host a session at Gracie Mansion for

         23  CIOs in January to review this and come up with some

         24  recommendations about how we can do a better job in

         25  that area.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  So, as

          3  part of this Executive Order and the Steering

          4  Committee, the approving of the annual technology

          5  plans of all mayoral agencies, is that part of what

          6  this Steering Committee does?

          7                 MR. BERGMAN: Our, the plans of

          8  agencies are reviewed in a variety of ways.  We meet

          9  with agency heads and CIOs on a frequent basis in

         10  order to receive budget approval, agency technology

         11  requests need to have a business case justification,

         12  they have to demonstrate alignment with the agency's

         13  own goals and the City's IT infrastructure and

         14  approach.  It's not clear from the, in the proposed

         15  legislation if agency plans, separate agency plans

         16  are, in fact, required given the fact that so much

         17  of what agencies are doing is now embedded into

         18  DoITT's operations and services.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  So, the

         20  other question I have then is, you obviously sit on

         21  the state planning apparatus, is that something

         22  that's maybe new for you but is it a new apparatus?

         23                 Is it different from what the City's

         24  doing?

         25                 I'm trying to figure out if, I know
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          2  you can't say that they have a better process and

          3  they may not but how does their process similar or

          4  different from what we're doing?  Because there is

          5  an actual document.  There is a looks like, some

          6  kind of strategic plan.

          7                 MR. BERGMAN: Sure.  I think the state

          8  has had a very robust process and I've been pleased

          9  to be a part of it.  They have, I think, a different

         10  set of challenges with regard to bringing together

         11  and trying to integrate various jurisdictions around

         12  the state and striving to deal with the, the

         13  communications issues, for example, among the

         14  jurisdictions so that there is a great deal of

         15  interaction and greater knowledge among

         16  jurisdictions and between jurisdictions and what the

         17  state is doing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So do you think

         19  that the state will be asking agencies for a, for

         20  planning documents?  Maybe because they're not as

         21  coordinated as the City is so that some indication

         22  as to where different agencies are and how they are

         23  communicating with municipalities and you know,

         24  there's not much of an economic, I do hear a lot of

         25  complaints about the lack of some kind of economic
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          2  development/technology strategic plan for the state.

          3  At least, I hear that from Hillary Clinton.  I don't

          4  know about from George Pataki.

          5                 MR. BERGMAN: I can't speak to what

          6  the state is doing in terms of requiring specific

          7  plans from it's agencies but they have a similar

          8  process of reviewing, as we do, technology plans of

          9  agencies, of going through a, a budget approval

         10  process and making sure that there's alignment

         11  between what state agencies are doing with the goals

         12  of the state and the information technology

         13  environment of the state.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Now the

         15  Mayor's Management Report, I guess, could also, in

         16  some cases, act as an agency technology planning

         17  tool.  I'm wondering if that's what you think of it

         18  as in DoITT.  I do believe having looked at some of

         19  the MMRs, it appears that in 2001, FI 2001, there

         20  was more technology in the text, obviously the issue

         21  of how much text and what's covered by MMR is a

         22  subject of much discussion, not to be gone over

         23  today again.

         24                 For those of you who don't know,

         25  there are many hearings, Patrick knows this,
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          2  regarding the MMR and the budget. They go on for

          3  months.  So not to go over that again, but the fact

          4  of the matter is, is the MMR used as a planning tool

          5  for technology in any way or is that something that,

          6  as you said, is sort of embedded in DoITT?

          7                 MR. BERGMAN: No, I think that the MMR

          8  is very useful to lay out the goals and objectives

          9  of City agencies and technology plans tied directly

         10  into those goals and objectives.  So it is a very

         11  useful tool.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Because

         13  for the public, just so you know, there was quite a

         14  bit of text, as I said, on technology in fiscal year

         15  2001 but in the subsequent MMRs, there hasn't been

         16  much.  Now that could, of course, be part of the,

         17  you know, what's in the MMR discussion but from the

         18  public's perspective, there isn't much listed there.

         19                 So that might be something to think

         20  about as you go into this process this year in terms

         21  of the public.

         22                 When you say that the plans are

         23  embedded in DoITT, I assume that means because

         24  there's more coordination and so DoITT has taken on,

         25  you know, some of the planning functions.  Certainly
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          2  when agencies come to testify at the Budget and MMR

          3  hearings, that's what they say but I'm just

          4  wondering what, how do you, how does that, sort of,

          5  translate into figuring out how different agencies

          6  are going to be part of this?

          7                 The reason I ask this and in

          8  conversations with some of the members of the

          9  Finance staff of the City Council, they are very

         10  concerned, for instance, about the Criminal Justice

         11  Data Sharing Project.

         12                 Now that's the project that involves

         13  many agencies, obviously, Corrections, Police,

         14  Juvenile Justice probably and obviously the Criminal

         15  Justice Coordinators Office.

         16                 So, apparently, they've been unable

         17  to get, you know, timetable, which agencies exactly

         18  and so on.  So if we had a, you know, three-year

         19  strategic or a yearly technology plan for even the

         20  Criminal Justice world of agencies then the Finance

         21  staff and the public would have a better sense of

         22  any efficiencies or, you know, ways in which the

         23  public would be better served.  So that's an

         24  example, how would that be embedded into DoITT or

         25  how could you see a better public strategic
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          2  planning, for instance, for something like the

          3  Criminal Justice Data Sharing Project?

          4                 MR. BERGMAN: Right.  I think that the

          5  importance of these plans is to ensure that we're

          6  leveraging economies of scale, that we are moving in

          7  the right direction, that we're utilizing common

          8  tools and technologies, that we're controlling costs

          9  and creating operational efficiencies and so that

         10  really is the value of these plans.  I think that it

         11  lays out at a fairly high level our goals and

         12  objectives with regard to technology and that,

         13  certainly among them are cross agency projects like

         14  Data Share.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  I think

         16  that's all true and I agree with you.  I'm just

         17  saying that as an example, a public body like the

         18  Council has been asking, I think, you know,

         19  legislative arm of the Mayor's office for this

         20  information and hasn't been able to get it and

         21  that's partly because there's no, sort of, yearly,

         22  even from DoITT, plan or, sort of, analysis so that

         23  the public, I just threw this out as an example, Ron

         24   --

         25                 MR. BERGMAN: Sure.  We'll be happy to
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          2  provide you with a copy of our plans.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Okay,

          4  because that is something that is necessary and the

          5  same thing, just so you know, Poletops, comes under

          6  DoITT actually with perhaps some D.O.T input, I

          7  would assume but again that was a situation where I

          8  know that we would hope that there would be spending

          9  in order to make the RFPs happen.  There are bids,

         10  there's revenue but not, you know, what's the

         11  relationship between the revenue that's gonna be

         12  coming in and the spending involved.  That again is

         13  something that, with some kind of strategic plan,

         14  that the public would have a better sense of.  These

         15  are questions that come as a result of my asking the

         16  Finance staff, what do you know about the

         17  relationship between spending and efficiency?

         18                 All technology is, obviously,

         19  supposed to be good as you outlined in your

         20  testimony for the customer, for the New Yorker but

         21  again, it's supposed to be saving us money and I

         22  think what we're saying with these two intros is,

         23  you may be doing that but it's not clear to the

         24  public.  So how do you, how can you, like, unembed

         25  it from DoITT so that there is some notion to the
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          2  public all the good things that you're doing?

          3                 MR. BERGMAN: Sure.  I think that the

          4  idea here is to provide a sense of our direction,

          5  our goals and objectives as it relates to technology

          6  in the City and to ensure that agency projects are

          7  consistent with those goals and objectives.  Will

          8  every, I don't think that every project will be

          9  listed in the, in the plan.  It's impossible to do

         10  so but I think the idea here is to create the

         11  guiding principles and to create an effective

         12  approach so that day to day actions are lined with

         13  the overall strategic objectives.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, so you

         15  think there's a way of doing that without, you know,

         16  obviously, Intros like the ones we proposed would

         17  need streamlining and text change and you know, but

         18  is there some other way of making that information

         19  available to the public?

         20                 I know these are, you know, it's not

         21  necessarily your dream to have this kind of Intros

         22  considered but how else would one be able to show

         23  the kinds of technology strives that you're making?

         24                 MR. BERGMAN: Sure.  In addition to

         25  making the plan available to you, we will put it up
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          2  on our website so it will be widely available and so

          3  the, it'll create the level of transparency that

          4  you're trying to address.  The legislation we think

          5  is not necessary because we believe that the Chapter

          6  that governs DoITT already addresses the

          7  requirements of the proposed legislation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay and the

          9  other thing to think about would be during the MMR

         10  process, perhaps, you know, more text, more

         11  narrative regarding the issue of technology which is

         12  very, you know complicated and not something that

         13  the public is used to hearing or even my colleagues

         14  to be honest with you.  So the fact of the matter

         15  is, more information is not something, it is needed,

         16  you know.  It changes so often there's not a great

         17  understanding of what the relationship is between

         18  efficiency, spending, savings and so on.

         19                 MR. BERGMAN: We'll address that with

         20  the Mayor's Office of Operations and see if, if that

         21  can be addressed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I mean even in

         23  the, in the example in the California plan which

         24  again, you could say, it's great on paper, doesn't

         25  mean that it's actually happening.  I have no

                                                            28

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  concept of what it is but there's a wonderful

          3  strategic plan summary with lots of flow charts and

          4  so on and that's the kind of thing that the public

          5  could understand.

          6                 If you, say that the 18 franchises

          7  that are, you know from Neon and all the other names

          8  that I could never remember, running through our

          9  streets, that they are not something that can

         10  necessarily help us, in terms of knowing because

         11  it's, you know, private information and so on but

         12  that kind of information, why don't we have, this is

         13  what we're spending, this is the broadband

         14  capability that we can get as a result.

         15                 That information is not available to

         16  the public and I have to tell you that as a result

         17  of our announcing this January 10th hearing in

         18  Brooklyn, phones of Council members in Brooklyn are

         19  ringing off the wall with concerns about a

         20  neighborhood and a particular business and a

         21  particular non- profit.  Partly because the

         22  information, even though it may not be completely

         23  available, there's no transparency. So I do think

         24  if, I will, obviously, discuss the legislation.

         25  Certain, more information up on the web would be
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          2  helpful.  But there is a lack of understanding as to

          3  some of these projects that I know DoITT is working

          4  on.

          5                 MR. BERGMAN: Sure and I think the

          6  TPAG group has been put in place to address some of

          7  these issues and is working in that direction.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Okay.

          9  Alright.  Thank you very much.

         10                 Our next speaker is Professor David

         11  Birdsell who is at the Graduate School of Public

         12  Affairs at Baruch.  I want the audience to know that

         13  David Birdsell is my favorite professor and if you

         14  ever watch him on New York One, he's also an analyst

         15  of the news.  Professor Birdsell.

         16                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: Good afternoon,

         17  Chairperson Brewer.  It's a pleasure to be here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: It's nice to see

         19  you.

         20                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: You're my

         21  favorite chairperson.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Oh, good.

         23                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: I had planned

         24  today on going over a lengthy litany of the virtues

         25  of technology planning and I'm disinclined to do so

                                                            30

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  now at any great length because we all know that

          3  technology planning is a good thing.

          4                 It makes processes more scrutable and

          5  as Chairperson Brewer just suggested, it also makes

          6  it possible for people to imagine how technology

          7  affects their lives when they are not necessarily

          8  themselves inclined, as they get up every morning,

          9  as I think most of us in this room probably are, to

         10  think about how technology can improve our lives and

         11  to think about how it integrates with the

         12  fundamental delivery of government services.

         13                 So I think that the focus is at least

         14  properly, and you have my written comments and you

         15  can look over those, not so much a question of what

         16  technology planning does but how we ensure that

         17  technology planning is made widely available to the

         18  people who can best make use of it and how it can be

         19  integrated, not only into the technical processes of

         20  government, but how it can become a touch stone for

         21  people imagining betterment in their communities.

         22  How it can become scrutable to large numbers of

         23  citizens as they see how the process takes place.

         24                 This is something that has been an

         25  issue in government technology planning for a very
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          2  long time and I'd go back to the mid 90s for one of

          3  the key touch stones, I think, in Federal Government

          4  with President Clinton's issuance of Executive Order

          5  13011 back in July of 1996 where he insisted that

          6  federal agencies begin to coordinate their

          7  activities and to make those activities available to

          8  the Legislature and to make those activities

          9  available to the public.

         10                 President Clinton, at the time,

         11  talked about the creation of what he called

         12   "affinity groups" that is in definition of the

         13  Executive Order at the time, people who were both

         14  trying to access the same kind of procurement

         15  information from government agencies and government

         16  agencies that would work with constellations of

         17  private sector and non- profit sector organizations

         18  interested in the same kind of technology

         19  development.  Very much the kind of user group

         20  technology that we have subsequently adopted and

         21  that we recognize is so important in procurement

         22  processes in city government and in technology

         23  planning overall.

         24                 They talk there about the bug bears

         25  of technology that we have come to understand so
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          2  well today.  Procurement, privacy, security and

          3  transparency but didn't use the terms that we would

          4  today, didn't that I did just now because it's not

          5  quite so easy to see exactly how those terms were

          6  unfolding in 1996 and remember, we were just

          7  beginning to expand the tech bubble and the

          8  tremendous optimism that drove that period was also,

          9  to a certain extent, tamping down on terms like

         10  privacy, security and transparency.  I want to focus

         11  on that last term, transparency, because it seems to

         12  me that it really runs to the core of what Intro 17

         13  and 27 are all about and I applaud both of those

         14  initiatives because of the transparency it seems to

         15  me that they provide.

         16                 Really quick rehearsal of just a

         17  couple of things on technology planning.  I think

         18  there are four areas in which technology planning

         19  and the transparency thereof provide particularly,

         20  particular benefits to the city planning process.

         21  One is that it better ensures that technology

         22  developments are accounted for in strategic planning

         23  at the agency level.

         24                 We all know that there's strategic

         25  planning going on at the agency level but we don't
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          2  know, necessarily how specific technology plans

          3  affect specific technology, specific service goals.

          4  We could rest, to a certain extent, comfortable in

          5  the assumption that they are aligned but we don't

          6  know that and need to in some fashion.  These Intros

          7  better ensure that, that might take place.

          8                 Number two, better ensure that

          9  technology services actually become a part of agency

         10  services to the public.  It's one thing to talk

         11  about technology and as Chairperson Brewer observes

         12  with respect to the California legislation, it's

         13  quite another to make sure that it's actually taking

         14  place.  More transparency leads to a better

         15  likelihood that that will be the case.

         16                 Number three, to better circulate

         17  information about proposed technology plans and

         18  consequently provide for a more open and creative

         19  technology acquisition process.  Right now, too

         20  frequently technology becomes apparent to people,

         21  technology planning becomes apparent to people in

         22  the relatively concretized form of an RFP.

         23                 Please respond to this initiative

         24  with these bids on this technology or this software

         25  platform.  What the technology plan, in a broader
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          2  sense would enable, is a almost a proto- RFP,

          3  providing an overview of what people want to

          4  accomplish and give people, at the outset, an

          5  opportunity to shape the specific mechanisms that we

          6  use to address problems and achieve public benefits.

          7                 I think that's enormously important.

          8  One of the things the City of Seattle has done and I

          9  would urge, by the way, that that be included in

         10  your review of municipalities, that has looked at

         11  some of these questions.  Seattle involves the

         12  business community in a very direct way.

         13                 They have business and non- profit

         14  and educational leadership in every one of those

         15  planning processes and they produce public reports.

         16  It's an interesting process.

         17                 I'm not suggesting that Intro 17 or

         18  27 go to that level of specificity, in fact, I'm

         19  going to recommend quite explicitly against that in

         20  a moment or two, but in any case, I think it's an

         21  interesting example that shows precisely how vetting

         22  technology plans creates transparency and the

         23  prospect of change.

         24                 Finally, number four, better

         25  coordination and planning among city agencies around
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          2  technology acquisition and development.  This goes

          3  without saying and everybody who talks about

          4  technology planning talks about the virtues of

          5  making sure that people are aware of what one

          6  another might be doing.  It leads to benefits

          7  potentially in training.  It leads to benefits

          8  potentially in the mobility of city workers.  It

          9  leads to benefits that are fairly obvious for people

         10  in the procurement community but again for citizens

         11  who are having to relearn, and I, by the way, am

         12  certainly among others an enormous fan of 311.

         13                 I'm an enormous fan of NYC.gov.  I

         14  think we've taken tremendous steps and there's a

         15  tremendous, there are many kudos owed to

         16  Commissioner Menchini and to his predecessor Alan

         17  Dobrin, in trying to make these things available to

         18  the public.  But consistency across of those

         19  hallmarks of government service and points of

         20  citizen access is not possible without some measure

         21  of planning.

         22                 I don't see many downsides to INT 17

         23  and 27 that are not technology questions rather than

         24  the Intro questions.

         25                 In other words, no unique problems.
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          2  Will it be, to a certain extent perhaps, an addition

          3  to the work cycle to produce the reports?

          4                 Maybe, but these are reports on work

          5  that is already going forward.  Again, the key

          6  benefit is transparency and the ability of publics

          7  to get in on that discussion.

          8                 Obviously, the ability of the Council

          9  to get in on that discussion and it seems to me that

         10  those are benefits that far outweigh a relatively

         11  minor paperwork goal that again is principally a

         12  transparency issue not, and we just heard, I think,

         13  in some extent, not a new planning effort.  At

         14  least, as that's presently undertaken.

         15  The timeframe, it seems to me, is critical.  It's

         16  important to think out five years.  No, we don't

         17  know necessarily what's going to happen in three

         18  years, much less five, much less ten.

         19                 However, if we don't think about how

         20  we're trying to gear our resources and gear the goal

         21  sets, we won't be able to recognize exciting new

         22  technologies that may be being developed in another

         23  area of city government.  I think that's very

         24  important.

         25                 Briefly on the issue of detail, I
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          2  believe that one of the great virtues of these

          3  Intros is, in fact, their lean character.  That they

          4  don't go into detail about saying what it is that

          5  people must pay attention to but rather simply

          6  saying that people must pay attention and make it

          7  available.  If they were more detailed, we would run

          8  into some of the problems that EO13011, and I'm

          9  thinking again of the Clinton order, ran into in not

         10  anticipating certain elements of privacy, security

         11  and other issues that the European union has dealt

         12  with much more effectively and I won't go into that

         13  here.

         14                 Finally, one change that I think

         15  might be helpful and I don't have specific language

         16  to recommend to you today but I would suggest

         17  something that more explicitly asks agencies to

         18  respond to the April DoITT overplan and the timing

         19  seems to me to be useful here in every year past the

         20  first year.  If the agency plans are coming out in

         21  February, they have a full nine months to figure out

         22  how those can be responsive to what DoITT

         23  articulated in the previous, in the previous three

         24  quarters and I think that would be a very, very

         25  useful thing.
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          2                 I appreciate the opportunity to share

          3  these thoughts with you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          5  much, Professor Birdsell.  I have a couple of

          6  questions.  One of it which is that, obviously,

          7  transparency you spoke about, the other issue, of

          8  course, is saving money and the issue of the budget

          9  which of, is always of concern as we face these

         10  deficits.

         11                 Are you aware, in your research of

         12  looking at some of these other states or just

         13  generally thinking about this issue as you have,

         14  that this kind of strategic planning around

         15  technology does save money in terms of if you think

         16  about it in advance then there could be even more

         17  budget savings?

         18                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: I think it's

         19  entirely possible. It's relatively difficult to pin

         20  a number because so many of the initiatives might

         21  not have been undertaken and therefore money not

         22  spent but better services had been constructed as a

         23  result.  I have no question that what services are

         24  delivered, are delivered more efficiently as a

         25  result of the planning process.  But if I may, a
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          2  second answer to that question, I would put

          3  transparency under both the budget savings and

          4  efficiency points because I don't think you can get

          5  there without that transparency.  It's a product of

          6  the ability to share information among interested

          7  parties.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay and the

          9  other question is the issue of business.  Obviously,

         10  we have talked a little bit about efficiency within

         11  city government and obviously, as city government is

         12  more efficient, that's better for business but one

         13  of the concerns that is brought up is what is the

         14  City's plan for economic development that may not

         15  just be the City agencies.

         16                 We come up into this issue of

         17  broadband and so on and my question to you is, I

         18  don't know if you've done any research in this

         19  field, but what could be from your research some

         20  planning mechanism for thinking about this economic

         21  development?

         22                 You hear a lot about Philadelphia as

         23  we discussed.  That is a situation in which, after

         24  much controversy, a bill was signed that says, you

         25  know there'll be one plan for the City of
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          2  Philadelphia, slightly different for the State of

          3  Pennsylvania but there's a lot of probably legal

          4  work to be done in between.

          5                 And obviously, when I talk about

          6  broadband, I'm also talking about, you know, cutting

          7  this digital divide, that overused word, in anyway

          8  that I can, so part of this planning from my agenda

          9  is to try to bring accessibility to underserved

         10  neighborhoods and people who aren't served by

         11  technology, something that you have thought about.

         12  So I'm just wondering as we talk about transparency

         13  and efficiency and budget savings, are there ways of

         14  using some of this transparency and do you think

         15  that the transparency in itself is a way to cut this

         16  digital divide in some way?

         17                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: I suspect,

         18  starting with your last question first, that it very

         19  much is a way to cut into the digital divide and one

         20  of the issues is trying to convince neighborhoods,

         21  some advocates in which need no convincing

         22  themselves, but many of the people do, that these

         23  are technologies that are essential to their future,

         24  that are vital to the lives that they imagine for

         25  themselves and for their families.  In order to see
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          2  exactly how technology can buttress a goal in

          3  government that isn't expressed in technological

          4  terms, I want my children to have access to

          5  information.  I want them to have the best

          6  libraries.

          7                 Well, how many people are aware of

          8  the extent to which we are presently planning, or

          9  not, for access in those areas to which we currently

         10  think of those goals as integral or, at least,

         11  mutually influential, or not, and have they, do they

         12  have the opportunity to talk about that?

         13                 I think there are, one of the things

         14  we certainly talked a lot about in the 90s, and I

         15  don't think that it's too late to talk about it

         16  today, are the unanticipated programs that might

         17  develop out of people's awareness of opportunities

         18  that grow precisely from transparency or their

         19  frustrations over the unavailability of investment

         20  in certain areas that grow again from transparency

         21  and educating people about what their government is

         22  doing for them and I think their government is doing

         23  a lot for them but not necessarily with all of the

         24  input that it could use from those communities on

         25  the ground.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: When you did all

          3  that work in the Brooklyn Library System, was it a

          4  result of plans similar to the ones that we're

          5  advocating here today because obviously the Brooklyn

          6  Library System is as large as many municipalities in

          7  this country and was there a five year planning

          8  process?  Was there a branch versus, you know, main

          9  library process?  Was there some kind of planning

         10  along those lines?

         11                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: It lead to such a

         12  planning process.  I wish that I could say that it

         13  was the product of such a planning process but only

         14  in the most general sense can that be said to have

         15  been the case.  That was the result of actually two

         16  Gates Foundation grants back in 1998 that actually

         17  teched up the Brooklyn Public Library System.  And

         18  then the question was, how, having teched up the

         19  library system, do we reach out to the public?

         20                 And what I give the Brooklyn Public

         21  Library tremendous credit for, and their leader at

         22  the time Martine Gomez, is the ability to understand

         23  that doing the technology planning was not enough.

         24  You had to show people what the technology plan

         25  would look like and bring them into the library and
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          2  our project "Par Excellence" was making people aware

          3  of how their lives could be transformed through

          4  broadband connections at local institutions that

          5  they already cared about and trusted and used

          6  extensively and that's one of the reasons why that

          7  was so successful.  That's why in the course of just

          8  two months, we were able to reach 14,000 people.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  So I guess

         10  we both agree that, you know, some kind of

         11  technology plans that are public and the City's

         12  business objectives, certainly elaborates right into

         13  that, really do create better customer service and

         14  that's really what we're all about.

         15                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: Absolutely and I

         16  couldn't agree more on the centrality of libraries

         17  to that outreach even here in 2004.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Alright.  Thank

         19  you very much and I appreciate your coming here

         20  today.

         21                 PROFESSOR BIRDSELL: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you.  David

         24  Hochman is next to testify.  Thank you very much for

         25  joining us today.  Why don't you introduce yourself
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          2  and we look forward to your testimony.

          3                 MR. HOCHMAN: Thank you, Council

          4  Member Brewer. Thank you for inviting me to testify.

          5    My name is David Hochman. I'm a consultant in

          6  technology based economic development.  I co wrote

          7  the report done several years ago for City Council

          8  on a framework for a New York City technology

          9  strategy and I was an informal advisor to the Center

         10  for an Urban Future on it's recently released

         11  broadband report.  I consult in part through the

         12  Technology Partnership Practice at Battelle Memorial

         13  Institute, but my testimony today represents solely

         14  my own opinion.

         15                 I favor both Intro 17 and 27,

         16  although I'll have slightly more to say about the

         17  latter.  As I see it, the thrust of Intro 17 is to

         18  require the mayoral agencies, through DoITT, to plan

         19  explicitly for their technology futures and then to

         20  be absolutely transparent about these plans.

         21                 It seems to me that the burst of IT

         22  innovation we saw a few years ago has, in the

         23  agencies, has now cooled. However, there's still

         24  much more that most of the agencies could do to use

         25  IT as a tool for lowering costs and for empowering
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          2  citizens and small businesses.

          3                 It is actually somewhat surprising to

          4  me that an annual IT planning mechanism does not

          5  already exist. Requiring it to be done and published

          6  is certainly a good idea if only from a budget and

          7  accountability standpoint.

          8                 But there are also economic

          9  development benefits.  First, lowering transaction

         10  costs helps small businesses in and of itself.

         11  Second, even small businesses that are not

         12  sophisticated IT users may be encouraged to make

         13  those investments when their principals can start

         14  doing important business with City agencies over the

         15  Internet.  That's good for their competitiveness.

         16                 Finally, and possibly most

         17  importantly, forcing the agencies and DoITT to

         18  provide an explicit road map for their IT

         19  investments opens up opportunities for technology

         20  vendors and integrators to plan in advance to meet

         21  these needs by adapting commercial, off- the- shelf

         22  offerings.  While some vendors who win these bids

         23  may be based elsewhere, there's always an advantage

         24  to being near your customer, so it's likely the that

         25  disproportionate advantage will accrue to New York
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          2  City- based enterprises and that's great news for

          3  economic development.

          4                 Now, let me turn to Intro 27.  Again,

          5  requiring an open, transparent, evergreen planning

          6  cycle for the City's IT and telecom investments is

          7  just good business and good government.  But what

          8  excites me the most about this Intro is the final

          9  phrase requiring DoITT to offer it's opinion of

         10  residential and business broadband accessibility.

         11                 The Committee already knows that most

         12  regions regard wide spread broadband connectivity as

         13  a critical element of their competitive strategy.

         14  It is well documented that we, in New York City,

         15  have some natural advantages in this game including

         16  the profit that multiple broadband providers see in

         17  serving our densely populated central business

         18  districts in Manhattan.

         19                 But it's equally well known that we

         20  have major gaps, neighborhoods including the

         21  downtown districts in the boroughs with substantial

         22  commercial population but no reliable, moderately

         23  priced access to broadband connectivity.

         24                 The report from the Center for an

         25  Urban Future reinforced this finding and it's
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          2  implications for our economic development strategy.

          3  The reason I see this phrase in the intro as

          4  important is that DoITT, in addition to serving as

          5  the City's technical resource, also has the

          6  potential to be a strong force for policy

          7  development aligned with our job creation

          8  priorities.  Of course, I wrote this before I heard

          9  the Deputy Commissioner's testimony which was very

         10  encouraging.  Broadband service is a complex, multi-

         11  layered infrastructure element comprising multiple

         12  interacting companies, some regulated, some not and

         13  often regulated at higher levels of government.

         14                 On technical grounds alone, DoITT is

         15  better equipped than any other City agency to

         16  understand accurately and with precision what's

         17  actually in the ground, what it's potential for

         18  service is, what additional construction is planned

         19  and by whom. Quite simply, it's engineers get this

         20  stuff the way few other City employees do, even in

         21  the otherwise excellent economic development

         22  agencies.

         23                 By publishing an authoritative

         24  report, DoITT can case the public spotlight on what

         25  various providers are and aren't doing.  Some
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          2  problems can be addressed through the bully pulpit

          3  alone.  Others may be subject to franchise

          4  agreements over which the City itself has some

          5  control.  Still others may require action in Albany

          6  or Washington, D.C.  In my own view, the Mayor's

          7  intergovernmental relations staff will be very well

          8  served by knowing with clarity what the regulated

          9  companies are and aren't doing and therefore what we

         10  should be asking the state and feds to force them to

         11  do.

         12                 There's quite a lot of business

         13  development at stake here and if we fiddle while

         14  Philadelphia, Chicago and other major cities build

         15  their broadband access infrastructure, you can be

         16  absolutely certain we'll be missing many

         17  opportunities for future job growth. Requiring DoITT

         18  to assess broadband connectivity will bring it's

         19  expertise into the public policy sector which would

         20  be a very good thing.  Thanks for the invitation to

         21  testify.  I'll try to answer any questions in my own

         22  area of expertise.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         24  much David Hochman.  That's wonderful and I

         25  certainly commend you and Neil Kleinman and Jonathan
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          2  Bowles for that tremendous report.

          3                 I know Jonathan spoke at our Queens

          4  hearing on broadband and was just, you know,

          5  gathering data at that point and it's a terrific,

          6  probably historic, piece of reporting.

          7                 One of my questions is, even in

          8  pulling that together, you know, I know you were

          9  tangently involved but in this world of transparency

         10  and technology planning, do you feel that you were

         11  able to get sufficient information from City

         12  government as you were writing this report or did

         13  you have any discussions amongst you as to whether

         14  there should be more information available as you

         15  did your --

         16                 MR. HOCHMAN: Well, I want to disclaim

         17  authorship of the report --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Right, no.  I

         19  understand that.

         20                 MR. HOCHMAN: -- My role was advisory.

         21

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I understand

         23  that.

         24                 MR. HOCHMAN: I really had no

         25  discussions with Jonathan about the City but we did
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          2  discuss, for example, to a degree to which Verizon

          3  did and did not cooperate and the level of

          4  cooperation, I would say as an outsider, was very

          5  low and that's something that the City can and

          6  should be concerned about at the highest levels.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, that's a

          8  very good point. And are you familiar with the

          9  planning processes, perhaps, of any other

         10  jurisdictions which would give us some sense of what

         11  we are or are not doing here in the City of New

         12  York?

         13                 MR. HOCHMAN: Well, I'll only comment

         14  as a former, as a former employee of the State of

         15  New Jersey on the question of whether these plans

         16  should be considered part of the budget process or

         17  not.

         18                 Having done a range of plans and a

         19  range of budgets as a state employee, I think I

         20  would advise against making them part of the budget

         21  process because budgets are, are inherently

         22  confidential between the Executive agencies and the

         23  Mayor.

         24                 It's going to be extremely difficult

         25  to get the level of transparency you want and the
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          2  Council wants and having these things done outside

          3  the budget process, actually provides a greater

          4  opportunity for transparency and public debate.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Well that's

          6  interesting.  I know the finance staff to date, I

          7  mentioned a little bit with Ron Bergman, but

          8  they're, you know, they're dying to understand how

          9  the relationship exists.  So there may be some

         10  portions of the budget process in terms of oversight

         11  where the budget process could fit into the

         12  technology oversight as opposed to what you're

         13  saying, you know, in sort of, agreeing with what

         14  you're saying.  It doesn't have to be concurrent but

         15  that could be part of the oversight.

         16                 MR. HOCHMAN: Certainly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So I understand

         18  if there is a savings as a result of efficiencies

         19  gained from technology usage.

         20                 MR. HOCHMAN: Certainly. One other way

         21  some jurisdictions have addressed the issue of

         22  savings is through infrastructure and productivity

         23  banks where agencies are able to borrow beyond their

         24  budget allocation and have to pay back out of the

         25  savings so that focuses attention on savings.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: What about the

          3  issues that, I know for instance, one of the

          4  oversight issues is our base map. That is a map, as

          5  you probably know, that photograph with lots of

          6  geographic information, computer overlays and there

          7  is, you know, a concern about sharing that data

          8  because of security and of course, you have within

          9  the Criminal Justice and other worlds many issues

         10  regarding privacy and security, Human Services.

         11                 There's a long list.  How about this

         12  issue of cyber security and making information more

         13  transparent.  Do you see that that's a concern or

         14  how would you address that?

         15                 MR. HOCHMAN: Well, I think at the

         16  planning level you're talking about, I don't, I

         17  don't see security of the plan as a concern.  I

         18  certainly see security as something one would want

         19  the plan to address particularly in cases like that.

         20    But the plan itself is unlikely to contain,

         21  unlikely to contain detail at a level sufficient to

         22  be a security risk I would think.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  And then

         24  just finally, you're absolutely correct when you

         25  mention the issue of trying to help small businesses
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          2  and some of the topics that Jonathan and the

          3  Center's report addressed and I'm wondering, I think

          4  it was Ron Bergman who mentioned, you know, the,

          5  this a little bit but how do you see such planning

          6  mechanisms helping, I call it the digital divide,

          7  but I guess the borough divide or the neighborhood

          8  divide go away.

          9                 Are there some ways that this

         10  planning process could help, you know, small

         11  businesses but actually help neighborhoods in

         12  general?

         13                 MR. HOCHMAN: Well, I very much am

         14  sympathetic with the Professor's testimony on that

         15  question.  I think that by laying out a framework

         16  for what's envisioned over the next year, over the

         17  next five years, you do allow both individuals and

         18  businesses to envision their role in it.  Either as

         19  consumers or almost as importantly as providers and

         20  both those are extremely important. But you can't do

         21  that unless there's, there's access to the vision.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         23  much.  That was extremely good testimony.

         24                 MR. HOCHMAN: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thanks for taking
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          2  the time.  The next person is Amy Santenello.

          3  Sorry, Amy.

          4                 MS. SANTENELLO: I have to apologize.

          5  I didn't bring additional written statements.  I

          6  have been on the road so I actually had to fax

          7  myself my own --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I think you're

          9  doing just fine-

         10                 MS. SANTENELLO: -- Written statement.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: -- And take your

         12  time and we can always get it later and include it

         13  in the record so just introduce yourself and we'd be

         14  glad to listen.

         15                 MS. SANTENELLO: Okay.  My name is Amy

         16  Santenello and I'm a senior research analyst with

         17  META Group's Government Strategies Practice.

         18  Government Strategies works with clients around the

         19  globe including local governments, state

         20  governments, federal governments, international

         21  governments in helping them to create strategies

         22  that reflect the public policies and help you at

         23  achieving your public policies through IT

         24  strategies.

         25                 Myself, I've done a lot of work with

                                                            55

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  jurisdictions and helping them facilitate, write and

          3  put together critiquing strategic plans. I've worked

          4  with the State of New York.  I've worked with Ron

          5  Bergman during that strategic planning process.  I

          6  also worked with governments like the City of

          7  Sacramento, Michigan, Missouri, New Jersey was

          8  mentioned before, South Carolina and governments in

          9  Australia as well.  So I wanted to provide my

         10  opinions based upon what I've seen other

         11  jurisdictions doing and what the value I see IT

         12  strategic planning being.

         13                 The benefits of strategic planning

         14  are both short and long term. Through the creation

         15  of an IT strategic plan, IT departments are able to

         16  align the investments they're making today with long

         17  term goals of the City.  Good strategic plans are

         18  regularly referred to providing the context for all

         19  budgeting and investment decisions. In New York

         20  City, like any government, is relatively

         21  decentralized with an IT division in every

         22  department.

         23                 Through the development of an IT

         24  strategic plan, the government is able to better

         25  understand the goals of various departments,
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          2  identify areas where collaboration amongst agencies

          3  will better serve the City's constituents and

          4  articulate those areas where the mission of an

          5  individual agency requires autonomous investment.

          6  For IT employees within the City, a strategic plan

          7  provides context, enabling them to understand how

          8  they're daily activities and projects align to a

          9  bigger picture for the City.

         10                 I relate IT strategic plans to the

         11  picture on the top of the puzzle box.  If I give

         12  everyone in this room a single piece of the puzzle,

         13  with out that picture, eventually we'll all put it

         14  together but if I provide you with a picture on top

         15  of that puzzle, we've put that puzzle together a lot

         16  faster with fewer trials and errors.  By having that

         17  picture of where the City wants to be, IT employees

         18  will better understand how their individual projects

         19  fit into that larger picture providing the context

         20  and the purpose.

         21                 Also, in working with external IT

         22  partners, the IT plan provides the City the

         23  opportunity to articulate what it's goals and

         24  priorities are rather than have vendors selling to

         25  the City to find the City's future around their
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          2  product suite.

          3                 Many governments interpret the

          4  creation of an IT plan as a hundred page document

          5  that takes 18 months to write, costs hundreds of

          6  dollars to publish and distribute and is obsolete by

          7  the time it reaches the broader community.  We found

          8  that governments have much greater success in

          9  writing shorter ten to twenty page documents,

         10  bulleted plans.  These plans highlight the top four

         11  to six business issues facing the departments, goals

         12  that the IT organization is undertaking to address

         13  each of these business issues.  These plans also

         14  include a few initial tactical steps the IT

         15  community will begin to take in achieving these

         16  goals.  They also provide explicit business measures

         17  by which to quantify the relative success of the IT

         18  community in obtaining these goals.  By putting in

         19  place a measurable IT plan founded on the City's

         20  business goals, external IT stakeholders, including

         21  those sitting in this room, have a vehicle for

         22  holding the IT community accountable.  The nature of

         23  an IT strategic plan is long term.  A strategic plan

         24  is document outlining where the City wants to be in

         25  five years and how technology is going to support
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          2  the City in obtaining that vision.

          3                 Therefore, a plan outlining the five

          4  year strategy is required. However, it's also

          5  critical for the City to create a process for

          6  reviewing and regularly updating those IT strategic

          7  plans.

          8                 Think of the difference of the

          9  priorities of New York City in 1999 versus today in

         10  2004.  Failure to regularly review the plan and

         11  refine the Department's strategies for obtaining the

         12  business objectives outlined in the plan will result

         13  in an obsolete document, seen as a bureaucratic

         14  requirement and not an investment road map.

         15                 Under the proposed legislation,

         16  departments are required to update their plans every

         17  three years.  While a significant rewrite of the

         18  plan will be needed probably every three years, the

         19  plan must also be reviewed and adjusted to reflect

         20  the City's goals on a more frequent basis.  There

         21  are changes I would propose, I would propose to the

         22  legislation.

         23                 As written, departments are required

         24  to write an IT plan but the legislation doesn't put

         25  in place a governing body to review the IT plans
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          2  being submitted by agencies and identify cross

          3  agency investment opportunities.

          4                 Whether this group is made up of IT,

          5  legislative and agency representatives, whether it's

          6  control agencies and City CIOs or it's a function of

          7  DoITT, there must be a group charged with the review

          8  and aggregation of the IT priorities.  This group

          9  should be provided authority under the proposed

         10  Intro.

         11                 Additionally, as I previously stated,

         12  successful IT plans are regularly referred to by

         13  multiple government stakeholders.  Some

         14  jurisdictions have put steps, have taken steps to

         15  require agencies to demonstrate a relationship

         16  between requests for appropriations and the agency

         17  IT plans.  The more linkages this group puts in

         18  place to tie the strategic plan to resource

         19  requests, the more successful the City will be in

         20  instilling a culture of planning.

         21                 I've been asked if the IT plans

         22  should be published for IT projects including cyber

         23  security, institutional net, residential broadband

         24  and cable and franchise agreements.  While these are

         25  important projects, they aren't strategies.

                                                            60

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 A strategy's a vision, a vision where

          3  the jurisdiction wants to be in five years.  A

          4  strategy by definition doesn't have an ending.  The

          5  IT plan should outline the goals the City or the

          6  Department wants to achieve.  Enterprise goals such

          7  as increasing citizen accessibility, expanding

          8  departmental information sharing and sharing a

          9  skilled workforce, promoting economic development or

         10  departmental goals such as increasing citizen self-

         11  sufficiency or expanding citizen self compliance.

         12  Projects such as cyber security would be important

         13  tactical steps but would be initiated underneath

         14  these broader goals.

         15                 Successful IT plans when mapped to

         16  business issues facing an individual department or

         17  city as whole will highlight changes technology's

         18  gonna bring to the business and government over the

         19  next five years.

         20                 IT plans are not just about the

         21  investments the IT community plans on making but the

         22  impact of those investments on the business of

         23  government enabling you, the policymakers of the

         24  City, to create a five year business plan for

         25  addressing the impact of these changes and
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          2  delivering better service to citizens.

          3                 There will be costs in developing an

          4  IT strategic plan.  The development of an IT

          5  strategic plan will include internal costs including

          6  departmental executives devoting time and

          7  articulating their business issues and IT executives

          8  identifying goals and initial steps they will take

          9  to achieve these goals.  If you choose to include

         10  the development of an investment board or governing

         11  body charged with coordinating the IT investments,

         12  the City will also incur that additional resource

         13  cost.

         14                 Based on departmental skillsets and

         15  bandwiths, some departments may rely on external

         16  resources to varying degrees during the planning

         17  process.  However, I believe, by providing

         18  departments with an overview of the expected

         19  components of the IT plan, how the intended purpose

         20  of the plan and the anticipated length and format of

         21  the submitted plans, the costs of creating IT plans

         22  will be far outpaced by the value of the plans --

         23  the City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         25  much.  That was very well put together.  We look
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          2  forward to receiving a copy and include it in the

          3  record.  I have a couple of questions.  Given your

          4  experience in different localities, how do you, as

          5  somebody who's looking in from the outside but has

          6  tremendous experience, how do you work with some of

          7  these planning processes?

          8                 Is it someplace where you help put

          9  together some of these governing bodies?  Do you

         10  show the relationship between efficiency and budget

         11  savings or, I mean, how do you see, like, you know,

         12  do you see this one process that's better than

         13  another in terms of your involvement?

         14                 MS. SANTENELLO: There's a number of

         15  ways that we work with governments to help them put

         16  together their strategic plans.  As I stated before,

         17  I think that the more that the plan gets

         18  institutionalized and utilized by the entire

         19  organization, the better off they're gonna be.  I

         20  think that you need to have, what we've seen in

         21  working with governments, we've gone, I've done

         22  everything from actually bringing the different CIOs

         23  together and budget and HR and legislative

         24  representatives to create a plan to actually just

         25  reviewing the plans that people have submitted and
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          2  providing recommendations.

          3                 First, it does need to have that

          4  business linkage.  You know, when you're talking

          5  about, the strategy is not broadband, the strategy

          6  is economic development or the strategy is citizen

          7  accessibility in looking at how that then can be

          8  measured through the implementation of technology.

          9  Part of it --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: It's not

         11  technology for technology's sake is what I always

         12  say.  It's for the goals that you just outlined.

         13                 MS. SANTENELLO: -- Right, and it's

         14  really making sure that in those IT plans that they

         15  include business measures so that you can, you as a

         16  representative, can understand and that citizen of

         17  New York City can actually understand how IT's

         18  benefitting the overall jurisdiction.

         19                 I also like, I think that the more

         20  frequently people actually review their plans, the

         21  more relevant they are.  Again, if you have people

         22  creating a plan every five years, everything changes

         23  so much.  We're moving towards wireless.  In five

         24  years, broadband may, we don't even know where

         25  that's going to be going and I think it's impossible
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          2  to create an investment plan over that timeframe but

          3  if you have some long term goals and the vision and

          4  the strategy of where you want to be, all those

          5  investments will lead to that, that point.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Do you

          7  find that there is in some of these governing bodies

          8  or some of these internal processes, that there is

          9  outside groups that are part of the planning or is

         10  it primarily and internal and then oversight and

         11  public hearings and so on or maybe it's just a

         12  variety of different methods?

         13                 MS. SANTENELLO: Yeah, there's a

         14  variety of different methods and it really depends

         15  upon, frequently it does help to bring someone in

         16  with an outside perspective but additionally, it

         17  also, the people that create the plan really have to

         18  be those that understand what the agencies are

         19  doing.  That's one thing that I worry about in

         20  seeing this type of legislation is, is the going to

         21  be a call for every consultant to come in and try to

         22  make money selling strategic plans to the City of

         23  New York.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  And then

         25  you've been reading about what Philadelphia's doing

                                                            65

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  and some of their, hopefully, trying, I guess, to

          3  provide opportunity for those who wouldn't normally

          4  get access.  That's the goal if you're looking at it

          5  as a big goal.  Is that something that you think

          6  makes sense as a part of a planning process?

          7                 I would say there's a lot of

          8  litigation.  There are a lot of players.  There are

          9  a lot of stakeholders but is that something that you

         10  think it will achieve it's goal or --

         11                 MS. SANTENELLO: But what I want you

         12  to think about is in trying to increase the

         13  accessibility and if you start to link up everybody

         14  and you have that broadband capability, not looking

         15  at just how that's going to be accessed to

         16  information but then what types of changes can you

         17  be making to the overall education system. How

         18  people actually use technology in the overall

         19  learning process. How you can start promoting people

         20  to come to the, to the government website to do

         21  things.  Self service and move towards self

         22  compliance and then once the impact of those people

         23  doing more self service, more self compliance on

         24  those business functions that, that behind the

         25  scenes in New York City and then how you can change
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          2  those business functions to provide more analysis

          3  and understanding of where you need to be heading as

          4  a city in the future.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  And then

          6  just finally, to the Mayor's credit and to Gino

          7  Menchini's credit, we do have the sixth sense of 311

          8  system.  Is that something, and that's certainly

          9  very customer friendly, do you think, have you been

         10  involved with localities that are working with a 311

         11  as a component?

         12                 MS. SANTENELLO: Very much so.  311

         13  has been a tremendous success for a number of cities

         14  and New York City has actually been, is one of the

         15  best practices that I frequently refer to.  What I

         16  think one of the things you're gonna find in the 311

         17  long term is that the types of information that

         18  you're able to aggregate and understand about your

         19  citizens is gonna allow you to start to analyze how

         20  are we delivering services to our citizens. Where

         21  are there opportunities for our agencies to begin to

         22  come together in delivering those services?  How can

         23  we do that more efficiently and effectively and how

         24  can we make sure that our citizens are getting the

         25  types of information that they need?
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          2                 So it's really, right now 311 is out

          3  there.  311's providing information to citizens.  I

          4  think where 311's gonna be heading is allowing you

          5  as the city, you know, New York City to start taking

          6  that information to start doing some business

          7  process re engineering on the backend.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Unfortunately for

          9  DoITT, we have a bill to help them do that which we

         10  are moving toward in a very procedural way so

         11  hopefully that will be something that will happen in

         12  the near future.  Breaking it down by neighborhoods,

         13  community boards, just what Gino Menchini is saying

         14  he's doing and has no interest in the bill but I'm

         15  sure that we can work something out. Thank you very

         16  much for spending time with us.  I appreciate it.

         17  Our next speaker is Bruce Bernstein.  I'd also like

         18  to welcome Council Member Tish James from Brooklyn.

         19                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Thank you, Madam

         20  Chairperson and Council Member.  My name is Bruce

         21  Bernstein.  I'm the President of the New York

         22  Software Industry Association which is the largest

         23  high tech trade association in New York City.  We

         24  have approximately 600 members.

         25                 We're interested in the economic
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          2  development aspect of all of your legislation, of

          3  all the work of the Committee, especially the high

          4  tech economic development aspect.  And so, I do not

          5  have written testimony, my remarks will be very

          6  brief as they always are.

          7                 First of all, I, once again, want to

          8  thank you and thank Bruce Lai for the briefing

          9  paper.  I always love getting these briefing papers.

         10    I always find them very, very interesting and they

         11  help me quite a bit and they outline the issue.  I

         12  want to call attention in to the briefing paper on a

         13  couple of aspects.

         14                 Number one is the Virginia, the

         15  Virginia situation and I'm not gonna call this a

         16  plan.  It's more of a vision and I have to admit,

         17  I'm not, I haven't thought about the issue of

         18  planning as much as you have Madam Chairperson, it

         19  was new to me in the last two days that particular

         20  proposal.

         21                 But so you know, I, I do have

         22  questions about the legislation but in the Virginia

         23  situation, the governor stated what I consider a

         24  very aggressive and forward thinking strategic

         25  vision.  It's on pages 11, 12 and 13 of the briefing
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          2  paper.

          3                 He treated economic development,

          4  particularly high tech economic development as an

          5  inherent component of any technology planning or any

          6  strategic vision process.  I particularly want to

          7  call your attention to point number five in Governor

          8  Warner's paper, increase research, and these were

          9  all part of his, you know, he didn't separate the

         10  government, he didn't separate the government

         11  technology planning from the technology planning for

         12  the industry and economic development, "increase

         13  federal research and development funding to industry

         14  in Virginia's colleges and universities".  Point

         15  number six, "increase commercialization of

         16  intellectual property from Virginia's labs,

         17  etcetera, labs and entrepreneurs".  I shouldn't

         18  leave out the word entrepreneurs and point number

         19  eight, "promote technology based economic

         20  development in Virginia by growing technology

         21  companies".

         22                 So, you know, that to me is an area

         23  where we are lagging behind in New York City and New

         24  York State as the integration of, of specifically

         25  strategic economic development in the high
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          2  technology industry.

          3                 I do believe that broadband and wifi

          4  including now what's called "wimax" are important

          5  component of systematic economic development. I have

          6  not read the Philadelphia plan.  I've seen it

          7  referred to in a number of situations and once

          8  again, I consider the Philadelphia Plan an

          9  aggressive and strategic step.  I think it's

         10  impressive. They're getting out ahead of the curve

         11  and we should be doing the same in New York.

         12                 I want to emphasize that cost control

         13  alone is not strategic.  I think there tends to be

         14  too heavily and emphasis in our New York thinking

         15  solely on cost control both in, in the Mayoral

         16  sector and in the Council.  I've discussions, as you

         17  know, over a number of years with Council people.

         18                 I finally, I think the testimony that

         19  preceded me was excellent.  I just want to briefly

         20  address one of David Hochman's points.  I was glad

         21  he got into the issue of local procurement.  I don't

         22  think local procurement proceeds automatically from

         23  this plan.  I think there have to be things, in

         24  other words, I think just because we had a strategic

         25  planning doc, if we do have a strategic planning
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          2  document of some sort or something written on paper

          3  once a year, once every five years whatever.  In

          4  some sense it'll help.  It certainly helps the big

          5  vendors.  In some sense, I don't know if it

          6  automatically helps the local vendors.  You have to

          7  think about local procurement particularly.

          8                 I think your outline, Mr. Hochman's

          9  outlining of the points on that was right and useful

         10  but as you know, I've been fighting on the local

         11  procurement front for a number of years and it is

         12  really something that we have to address.  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         15  much.  I have a couple of questions.

         16                 One is, is it your impression that

         17  there is a plan, per agency, for technology and what

         18  I mean is when we started this process three years

         19  ago, I know that there were many challenges

         20  regarding procurement and I think that between DoITT

         21  and Marla Simpson through her Contracts Office,

         22  there have been some improvements.

         23                 We also include the issue of the

         24  Small Business Department and what that

         25  Commissioner's been able to do.  But I'm just
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          2  wondering, do your many small businesses feel that

          3  there is some effort toward, you know, long term

          4  planning for improvement as time goes on?

          5                 What Ron Bergman said earlier was

          6  that there are processes through EDC, through

          7  internal agencies talking to each other on a regular

          8  basis, next Wednesday and ongoing conferences and so

          9  on and that much of it is hard to delineate from

         10  DoITT.  He used the word "embed".  So I'm just

         11  wondering, you know, in a positive way, do you feel

         12  that there is this kind of planning, because as

         13  everybody agrees it changes perhaps, you know,

         14  monthly and daily as opposed to Housing or Human

         15  Services where we always have a need but there isn't

         16  this, you know, dramatic change every month as to

         17  what's the possibilities are.

         18                 MR. BERNSTEIN: From my parochial

         19  perspective, not from my --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Right.

         21                 MR. BERNSTEIN: -- Right, from my

         22  parochial, economic development perspective in

         23  helping my companies get into the City pipeline.

         24  There has been different forms of individual

         25  outreach. Do I believe there is a, am I convinced,
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          2  at this point, that the Administration has a plan

          3  from the top or a, an emphasis from the top?

          4                 No, I am not convinced of that at

          5  this point.  I will say that DoITT, for example,

          6  Menchini, Commissioner Menchini and Deputy

          7  Commissioner Bergman have outreached to our

          8  organization.  Bergman came and was a keynote at one

          9  of our meetings and sat there and answered really

         10  particular questions about procurement.  Really

         11  particular stuff that, you know, our members ask to

         12  several hundred people for maybe an hour or so and

         13  did a tremendous job of it.

         14                 Do they, you know, as you also know,

         15  I made various sort of, I won't say they were strong

         16  efforts but medium efforts in the recent RFPs to try

         17  to get some sort of local procurement into the big

         18  recent RFPs that came out and no, no that didn't

         19  happen.

         20                 I can't, you know, my take on it was

         21  I didn't make enough effort on it but on the other

         22  hand nobody at the top is saying, you know, nobody

         23  at the top is making, making speeches about the

         24  local technology industry either.  I don't hear

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So one of the

          3  issues I think and I know that Council Member James

          4  has been very articulate on this topic and she has

          5  lots of constituents who are concerned about local

          6  procurement and access and transparency and costs

          7  concerns etcetera in terms economic development.

          8                 One of the issues might be that if we

          9  had this planning process that was open and that had

         10  into the future kind of discussion that what you

         11  wouldn't be alone in calling for some of these

         12  things.

         13                 It would be more of the planning

         14  process and you know, because it isn't fair anyway

         15  to have it all on you and if you had the kind of

         16  flow chart that was available and reviewed on a

         17  regular basis to show that there was a benefit to

         18  some of our smaller businesses, then that would be

         19  an advantage to everybody so that's something to

         20  think about.  I don't know if you have any questions

         21  along those lines.

         22                 Okay.  So that's what we're, that's

         23  what we're aiming for.  As usual, thank you very

         24  much for your testimony.

         25                 I just want to mention that we also
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          2  have written testimony that will be available on the

          3  web from the Citizens Budget Commission. Both Marcia

          4  Van Wagner and Charles Brescher who's our very

          5  esteemed members of CBC submitted testimony.  I also

          6  want to thank Carolyn Purcell, Purcell Ventures,

          7  who's a former CIO of the State of Texas.  She, too,

          8  has provided written testimony which will be

          9  available on the web.

         10                 So I thank everybody for joining us

         11  here today.  I think we've had a good discussion

         12  regarding some planning practices and transparency

         13  and I am sure that we will have on going discussions

         14  with the Administration regarding these bills.  I'm

         15  sure there'll be changes and but I also want to add

         16  that on January 10th, we're going to be in Council

         17  Member James' borough at the University,

         18  Polytechnic, to talk about the issue of, of economic

         19  development and broadband services and we look

         20  forward to that discussion. Thank you Bruce Lai.

         21  Thank you everyone who's here today.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 2:36 p.m.)

         23                 (The following written testimony was

         24  read into the record.)

         25
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          2  Written testimony of:

          3  Carolyn Purcell

          4  Purcell Ventures LLC

          5

          6                 I held the position of CIO for the

          7  State of Texas from 1994 through 2003.  In that

          8  position, I served as Executive Director of an

          9  independent agency that operated as a kind of

         10  corporate headquarters for IT in state government.

         11  I have visited the DoITT website and believe that my

         12  role was similar to that of Commissioner Menchini.

         13                 I reported to a board of directors

         14  who hired me.  Since Texas has a constitutionally

         15  weak governor, most of my strength was derived from

         16  legislative action, including the enabling statute.

         17  Texas, like most states, has a regular strategic

         18  planning cycle intended to complement the strategic

         19  direction of Texas' elected officials. My comments

         20  reflect my experience.

         21                 In Texas, there is an overarching

         22  statewide strategic plan that identifies statewide

         23  goals for agencies to follow.  Each agency also

         24  produces a strategic plan every other year with an

         25  Information Technology addendum.  The state CIO's

                                                            77

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  office biennially convenes representatives of

          3  elected officials, businesses, the public and other

          4  government officials to create goals and objectives

          5  that align IT with the statewide business strategy.

          6  Agency IT departments are required to link new

          7  expenditures to a strategic initiative identified in

          8  one of these plans.  The biennial schedule merely

          9  reflects the fact that the Texas legislature

         10  convenes every other year.

         11                 The most critical success factor for

         12  any IT initiative is that it serves the business of

         13  the enterprise.  From DoITT's website, one purpose

         14  of the department is "sharpening the alignment of IT

         15  resources and investments with business strategies

         16  and objectives." I am confident that the

         17  Commissioner is attending to this purpose, so some

         18  documentation regarding alignment may already exist.

         19    This should be explored before a new reporting

         20  requirement is created.

         21                 If the Committee's objective for the

         22  agency planning documents is to evaluate agencies'

         23  IT alignment with the City's strategic business

         24  goals, a three year cycle for such plans (as is

         25  suggested in Introduction Number 27 for DoITT) would
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          2  be more appropriate for the agencies.

          3                 However, the documents described in

          4  Number 17 sound more like budget documents than

          5  strategic plans.  They are prospective in nature,

          6  but the Introduction should require agencies to link

          7  spending to the City's goals and objectives.

          8                 If the Committee's objective for the

          9  documents is to evaluate how well agency IT is

         10  performing against DoITT's aligned plan,

         11  Introduction Number 27 should be changed to require

         12  that the City's CIO establish appropriate goals and

         13  objectives for agencies' IT spending, as well as

         14  forecast infrastructure investments that will be

         15  relevant to agencies.  Interim agency progress

         16  reports (in lieu of agency strategic plans) should

         17  be required, including explicit links between

         18  spending and strategic objectives.

         19                 The progress reports could include

         20  other performance data.

         21                 If the intent of these two

         22  legislative initiatives is to provide budget

         23  visibility for IT dollars, then they could be

         24  strengthened by requiring a link between proposed

         25  expenditures and the goals and objectives of the
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          2  City's elected officials.

          3                 I congratulate the Committee on

          4  Technology in Government on their interest in making

          5  sure that technology is serving the people of New

          6  York City.  I'm sorry I could not appear in person

          7  so that we could have an exchange of ideas.

          8

          9  Written Testimony of:

         10  Marcia Van Wagner, Deputy Research Director

         11  Citizens Budget Commission

         12

         13                 The Citizens Budget Commission is

         14  pleased to offer it's testimony on the issue of

         15  requiring the Department of Information Technology

         16  and Telecommunications to develop a planning system

         17  for technology and telecommunications.

         18                 CBC is a strong proponent of the

         19  strategic use of technology in the provision of

         20  government services.  We have applauded the use of

         21  Comstat and similar systems to use information

         22  strategically because we know that better use of

         23  technology can lead to improved service delivery and

         24  in many cases lower costs.

         25                 Our report on procurement reform, for
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          2  example, showed how the City's paper driven and

          3  uncoordinated system for procurement of goods was

          4  costing taxpayers millions of dollars per year in

          5  excess labor costs, delays and reduced competition.

          6  Government managers know how powerful information

          7  technology and telecommunications can be as well.

          8                 They see how IT upgrades can increase

          9  the productivity of their employees and allow them

         10  to do more with less.  Unfortunately, in the past,

         11  technology was frequently implemented in an

         12  uncoordinated fashion, leading to technological

         13  incompatibilities among agencies, a lack of

         14  budgetary coordination and other problems.

         15                 These issues presumably formed the

         16  impetus behind Mayor Giuliani's Executive Order

         17  creating the New York City Technology Steering

         18  Committee.  That Committee was charged with

         19  development and oversight of the City's technology

         20  deployment.  It was made up of the Directors of the

         21  Office of Information Technology and

         22  Telecommunications, Management and Budget and

         23  Operations.

         24                 We think that a planning and

         25  oversight approach such as proposed the Council's
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          2  legislation makes sense.  The background paper

          3  prepared by Committee staff for this hearing lays

          4  out many of the advantages of strategic planning in

          5  the technology arena and I will not repeat them

          6  here.

          7                 However, I think that the Council has

          8  made an omission in it's proposal that should be

          9  rectified.  A plan without a budget is never more

         10  than a plan.  The mandatory technology plans should

         11  be part of the budgeting process and should

         12  establish the relationship between technology

         13  investments and improved or more efficient service

         14  delivery. Thank you for inviting our testimony.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 2:36 p.m.)
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